Figure 01Early morning milk round
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The Monastery

The Monks
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townspeoplec the monks of the Abbey. They belonged to the Benedictine order, whose way of life

has changed very little down the centuries. The clothes (habits) of modern Benedictines are the

same as those worn in Dunfermline thibse centuries ago, and the daily routine of public worship,

private prayer, study and work is also the same, although some monasteries have reduced the
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Benedict who founded the order in the sixth century. This is not a set of rules so much as a collection

of exhortations and guidelines which aims to help the monks and nuns achieve as much holiness of

life as they are able.

The habits worn by the monksve not altered down the years. Different orders of monks and nuns
wear habits of different colours. Some wear white, grey or brown, but Benedictines wear black. Over
a long black tunic with a leather belt and a separate hood, goes a sleeveleskelkgbegarment

called a scapula. This was originally a work apron but long ago became a normal part of the habit.
Somtimes a voluminous long cloak is also worn, called a cuculla. The monks of Dunfermline were
allowed an extra item of clothing, a leather capkiep their tonsured (shaven) heads warm in the
Scottish winter

Figure 02Habit, ScapulaCuculla

The Benedictine day began with the office of Nocturne said in the church at 2.30am, after which the
monks returned to bed until 5.30am when they beghae day proper with Lauds. Prime was said at
7.00am after which they had breakfast and a time of work or meditation. Daily Mass was at 9.00am
followed by work until 11.30am when Terce was said. After this came lunch, eaten in silence while
one of the brahers read aloud a passage from the bible from the pulpitum, high in the wall at the
southeast end of the refectory. After lunch the brothers rested for a while then worked until None at
3.00. There was more work after None until Vespers at 6.00pm folldyesipper, after which

came free time until 8.00pm. The final office of the day was Compline at 8.00pm, after which the
monks went to bed. Benedictines are not a silent order, but the Rule advised that only necessary



conversation should take place duritige day, except during the free time. Between Compline and
Lauds, however, the monks observed the Great Silence, during which only absolutely vital
conversation was allowed.

The work done by the monks varied according to their place in the communitAGtha, assisted

by the Prior, was the head and administrator of the community. Any monk who was an ordained
priest might be chaplain of one of the numerous altars, where he would sing Mass each morning for
the souls of the patrons of the altar. The almomeayuld distribute food and fuel to the poor and

look after the ones who lived in the almshouses of St Catherine and St Leonard

The cellarer would oversee the purchase, gathering in and storage of food and drink and issue
ingredients to the bakehouse, breweand kitchen each day. He employed a merchant of the town

to do the actual buying for him and much grain and meat would come in as tithes and rents from the
farms belonging to the Abbey. The Infirmarian looked after any sick brothers in the infirmary. Th
Novice Master taught the postulants and novices who were not yetfuifessed monks and the

Master of Music taught choir boys in the Song School and drilled the brothers in the plainsong which
was used in the various offices. Brothers who had no @algi responsibility would spend much

time in the cloister where the light was good, copying manuscripts of the Bible or other holy books,
or they might work in the Abbey garden.

Figure 03Monks listening to Cuthbert of Durhaamd A monk writing ananuscript

The monks were not enclosed and were a familiar sight in the town, especially ones like the Almoner
and Cellarer, whose work brought them into close contact with the people. The chaplains were also
a familiar sight in the Burgh Court. Much b&tincome of the various altars was in the form of rents
from properties in the town which were sometimes not paid, often because the property in question
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had become ruinous. In order toq@sses the property and sell it to recoup the rent the chaplain

had to appear at four successive Head Courts (January, April and November) at each of which the
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rent. .

The Church and Monastery

The nucleus of the Dunfermlirmmunity was three monks, brought from Canterbury by Queen

Margaret, the wife of Malcolm Canmore, who used a small church which may have been built during

her time. Her son, David | brought and Abbot and a further twelve monks from Canterbury and

orderedthe building of a new church on the site in 1128 (dedicated in 1150) and it is the Norman
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Figure 04Durham Cathedral Nave Nave of the Old Abbey

The four pillars at tb eastern end of this building are decorated in the same style as those in

Durham Cathedral and it is thought that a master mason came from Durham to oversee the building
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present kirk and the monks shared it with the townspeople, partitioning off the east end, to form a
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Queen Margaret was formally canonised in 1249, by which time work was well on the way on

building a chapel for her remains at the eastern end of the church. In the following year her body

was translated to the new shrine from its regjiplace by the site of altar in the little church she had

built. The remains of the shrine can still be seen outside the east end of the Abbey kirk. The shrine

was part of a major renodelling of the monks' choir. North and south transepts (wings) were

added, with a lantern tower at the crossing where they joined the body of the church, and a Lady

Chapel was built. During the Medieval period seven Scottish monarchs were buried in the choir at
Dunfermline, the most famous being Robert the Bruce in 1329YTRey { 8 Q OK2ANJ ¢l & | f €
into ruin after the Reformation in 1560 but a new church was built on the site in 1818, when the
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As well as the High Altar, dedicated to the Holy Rduele were by the sixteenth century fifteen
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would have been in their own side chapels, dedicated to St Andrew, St Benedict, St Cuthbert, St
John, St &herine, St Laurence (supported by rent from St Laurence Croft outside the nether gate of
the Abbey), St Mary Magdalene, St Mary of Pity (Our Lady and the crucified Christ), St Michael, St
Peter, St Stephen, St Ursula and Corpus Christie. These wddgealbeen founded by pious men

and women who made over the rents of property for their upkeep. The founders of all these altars
are unknown, but the altar of St Catherine and St Margaret was founded by a sacristan of the Abbey,
dene Robert Swinton. The aabf the foundation is unknown but dene Robert was made a guild

brother in 1498 and was still alive in 1520.

The other buildings of the Abbey complethe cloisters, chapter house, dormitories, refectory etc
would have been begun at the same time as tharch, the monks presumabliying in temporary
buildings until they were finished. There is no record of when the original building was done but it is
known that in 1329 the refectory was still being rebuilt, having been damaged when part of the

Abbey wadurnt by Edward | of England in 1304.
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Figure 06 Congctural Plan of the early Abbey
The dark lines indicate the survigiwalls

k



Post-Refor mation

After the Reformation all monasteries and nunneries were taken over by the Crown and in England

the monks and nuns were turned out, many being reduced to beggingcotland the inhabitants of

religious houses were allowed to remain after 1560 if they wished, being granted-oaiseand a

pension until they died. Some of the Dunfermline monks were local men who may have gone to live

with relatives. The almoneetained his position as he was responsible for the upkeep of St
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Abbey and each was granted a pension of £51 per annum by Queen Mary with 20s a year for coal, to

be paid to them by the Commendator out of the revenues of the Abbey. In addition, each man was

allocated his own room and a garden. After each monk died his pension and property were allocated

to royal servants. At least one monk married: Alexander Steveniedalanet Sibbald on 26 January
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the monks must have been young in 1560 as in 1584 ten of them still survived (Alexander Steven

among them). Theirroyal graiat ¢ SNBE O2y FANNX SR WYl ye 2F (GKSY 0SA
pension, however, had been reduced to £10pa.

The Parish Church

Standing in the bare stillness of the Norman nave today it requires a considerable effort of
imagination to picture it as it was Medieval times. For one thing it would have been very crowded
with altars. Chapels were formed by placing screens or curtains in the aisles between the pillars and
the outer walls and in each was an altar dedicated to a different saint. By 1520, bdwdedigh

Altar at the east end of the church, there were at least eight others. The altar of The Rood and Our
Lady was near the High Altar. The altar of Our Lady, St Michael and St Catherine had been founded
by Sir William Stewart of Rosyth. The other atasere dedicated to St Margaret, St Mary or Our

Lady of Pity (founded by David Bothwell), St Nicholas (patron Henry Bothwell), St Ninian, St Salvator,
and the Holy Blood (supported by, among other donations, the rent from the Holy Blood Acres).

Each altawould have had its complement of crucifix, candles and gold or silver communion vessels
and possibly a perpetuallyurning lamp. The front of the altar would have been covered with an
embroidered or coloured cloth called a frontal and the top with a lafite linen runner or a

decorated cloth.

Figure 07Medieval altar frontal




The town and the Guild Merchant were responsible for the upkeep of several of the altars, the Guild
being especially concerned with the altar dedicated to the Holy Blood. In B5@0 the

Reformation which forbade Roman Catholic worship in Scotland, one of the guild brothers handed
over a box containing the accoutrements of an altar. There were two albs (long tunic) and three
chasubles (long cloak), one of them of blue velvat a stole (long narrow strip of silk). These were
vestments for the monk priest who celebrated Mass each morning for the souls of departed Guild
members. For the altar itself there were a frontal of yellow velvet, two altar cloths, five altar towels
and 2 ells of spare linen and a crucifix of gilt brass. No candlesticks are mentioned so they had
perhaps disappeared into private ownership.

Adding to the colour of the altar hangings and vestments were paintings on the walls and ceilings.

One set survivesrothe ceiling at the eastern end of the northern aisle. Robert Henryson, the poet
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(almost certainly Dunfermline) and reading texts painted on the walls. Théngsrand texts would

have been richly coloured and the statues of the saints, of which there would have been many in the
building, would also have been painted and gilded like the roof bosses in this picture

Figure 0815" Century stone carvings

Theyare fifteenth century stone carvings from Norwich Cathedral which were whitewashed over at
the Reformation. Cleaning in the nineteenth century revealed the original colours which were
restored on many of the bosses

At times the nave would have been quietiystling with life. Mass would have been celebrated daily

at the High Altar and on a smaller scale at the chapel altars. Once the services were finished people
from the town would have been coming and going to make their private devotions and petitions at
the altars and the statues of the saints. Monks would have been tending the altars, filling lamps,
putting away communion vessels, cleaning brass and silver. Debts were often repaid by putting the
money down on an altar and people used the church as dingeplace for trade negotiations.

Religion was central to the lives of the medieval and later townspeople and their church was a focus
for many of their activities.



For further information about the Abbey and its churches see Royal Dunfermline ed Rtelvaueltt,
pub Society of Antiquaries of Scotland 2005 ISBN: 0 903903 342

For more pictures of the Abbey see the Images and Playing with the Past sections

Return to top of document




Medieval Home Life

Life in a Medieval Home

Figure 09 Cover of the earliest surviving Court Book of Dunfermline

This late fifteenth century domestic scene comes from the cover of the earliest surviving Court Book
of Dunfermline, which was started in 1488. It is rather oddly sandwiched between Eattithe
Adoration of the Magi and of the Virgin and Child seated between two female saints (one of which is
St Catherine). Perhaps it was intended as an earthly contrast with the two heavenly scenes and it
may depict Slotlg one of the seven deadly sinslternatively it may illustrate a story or fable that

was wellknown at the time. The housewife has fallen asleep while turning the spit and a very jaunty
dog is about to eat the roasting meat. Whatever the significance of the picture may be, a wealth of
detail is crammed into this small space which can help us to picture the home life of the fifteenth
and sixteenth century inhabitants of Dunfermline.

The woman sits in a simpbpnstructed armchair. She wears a long gown with tight sleeves, alaced
up bodcce and an ample collar. On her head is a fabric (probably linen) hood odhessl Propped
against the wall beside her is her distaff, full of combed wool or flax ready to be spun, and next to
the distaff is the spindle, half full of yarn. The constructof the handle end of the spit is very clear



with its threelegged support. The other end is smudged by rubbing of the book cover, but it is

supported by another upright stand. The roast is a whole animal of some kind, probably a fowl, and

the juices aralripping down into the pan set ready to catch them, with its basting ladle ready to

hand. The fireplace is an openonewithafieéi  yYRAY 3 3ANI GS FyR I (G223KSR
could be suspended is hanging in the chimney.

Rather confusingly, at thitime and for at least a couple of centuries thereafter, it was the actual
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afford to buy one had to hire one from a more fortunate neighbour who had one to spare. By this

time there was very little available wood and coal was the preferred fuel for those who could afford

it. A coal fire cannot be successfully magtea hearth stone, so the chimney was necessary to lift it

up and provide a bottom draught. The poor still used peat which is not very effective as a roasting

fire, even if they could have afforded the meat.

A basic chimney consisted simply of a gridirerbasket but a more sophisticated version would

have a buiHlin fireback to protect the wall from the flames. (A Kirkcaldy butcher who was caught by
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would hawe a spit support built into it.

The distaff and spindle would have played a very large part in the woman's life. Whenever she was
not working at some other task she would be spinning. The early records of the Dunfermline Guild
Merchant (starting in 1433uggest that the production of textiles and leather were the basis of the
trade of the town and that textiles became more important towards the end of the fifteenth

century. Dyeing was an important trade, dyers being allowed Guild privileges on the paynaent
annual fee. This indicates that woollen yarn and cloth was being produced in some quantity, as linen
was never dyed, being unable to fix the natural dyes which were used at the time. However, flax was
grown locally and lint (flax prepared for sping) was imported wholesale from the Baltic, so the
production of linerthread and cloth was also important. Women and their servants spun thread and
yarn endlessly, much of which was then given to a weaver to be made into household textiles. Any
surplus wa sold to boost the family income

John Wilson and Marjorie Wellwood

On 25 October 1522 Marjorie Wellwood, widow of the merchant John Wilson, gave in an inventory

to be registered in the Dunfermline Court Book. It listed the goods handed over to her by her

brother-in-law, Alexander Wilson. It seems that John and Marjorie had no living children, so that
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moveable goods together with whatever other goods he might Hafteher in his will. As no will has
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merchant booth

Furniture press (cupboard) form long table langsaddle (a settle, which may fold out as a bed) great
kist, comb, mirror silver spoon painted cloth cushion holy water vat candle holder straw skip
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Bed and Bedding folding bed feather bed (mattress) vardoed hangings?) bolster, pillow,
blankets pair of sheets, nightgown

W2Ky 2AfazyQa /ft20KSa o0Sad 326y O02Fd FyR 21 01Si
best sark pair of spurs sword hood

Tableware salt vat goblet, plate, saucer trencherhaisunterfeit (dish?) ale cup basin and laver
(ewer) The Cooking Fire chimney (grate) pot hanging chain spit pair of pot hangers pair of tongs,
shovel iron fork pot, pan, small pan gus pan (large pot) kettle girdle chafing dish

Cooking Equipment baking &l leaven tub sieve baking cloth mortar and pestle pair of pepper
guerns pair of stones for grinding mustard ladle, a hand axe charger (large flat dish) gardyn (large
bottle) eilcruck (oil bottle?) tin quart (2pts) a tin pint tin chopin (1/2 pt) mutch{#&i4 pt) salt meat
barrel vessel cupboard food cupboard meal shrine (chest)

Linen tablecloth, towels vilecot (undergarment) breast kerchief nap&ipinning and Brewing pair

of wool combs kamestock (frame on which the wool combs were fixed I) heckle, reebpair of

wool shears spinning wheel masking vat (tub for soaking malt to make ale) brewing stool brewing
tub

Business Equipment counter board (a board marked with a grid for calculating) shrine in the booth
Danzig toll weigh balk pair of balances niéddalk and balances full troy pound (weight) lead stone
(weight) lead half stone lead quarter (stone) mare two years old saddle, bridle and stirrup leathers A
schoving horn hose kame (horse comb?)

John Wilson had been a notable figure in Dunfermline,isgriioth as Bailie and as Dean of Guild on

several occasions. He lived on the north side of the High St, somewhere about the middle of the

block between Bruce St and Cross Wynd and it was in thebfawéh of this house that the handover

was made to his wliow. Alexander also gave Marjorie the cupboard (almery) in the booth in which

John Wilson had kept merchandise, to use for her lifetime. It was common practice for a widow to
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by David Black, monk and chaplain of the Abbey, Thomas Wellwood, James Stewart, Simon Carver,
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Marjorie Wellwood was a member of the influential Wellwood family and her late husband had left

her enoughfurniture and goods to keep her in comfort for the rest of her life. There is no mention of
merchant goods in the booth so maybe Marjorie already had custody of them or she may have

intended to let out the booth with its equipment and possibly the horseamother merchant. Her
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his property, which would mean that slwad the right to the use of it (liferent) for as long as she

lived As the furniture is only enough for one room, Marjorie would have let the rest of the rooms in

her house to bring in an income. John Wilson had also owned a property in the New Rowhad if t

had also been in conjunctfeftment with Marjorie she would have been able to collect the rents from

this as well.

No merchant testaments survive from this early date, which might have given some indication of the
O2ySyita 2F W2Ky éfiom thelagfed sixteénth 2eitiry shawdhat it & have
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consisted largely of utilitarian bulk goods such as wool and imported flax, iron and large cooking

pots. Food was sold at the-bieekly markets, local cloth was bought from the weavers, ale and win

were bought from ale wives and taverners, clothes were made by tailors. Anyone requiring fripperies
4dzOK |a aLAO0OSa 2N FAYS FroNROa ¢g2dzZ R KIFE@S (G2 32
Merchant Guild book makes it clear that Dunfermline martis were dealing mainly in ox hides and
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commodity, although he had links with Danzig, which was the centre for the importing of flax and

iron, so these mbably featured as well.

The inventory of goods handed over to Marjorie gives a very complete picture of her life. She had a
bed and bedding. The nightgown was what we would call a dressing -gusaple usually slept

naked at this time. She would almasgrtainly have had a servant who probably slept on the
langsaddle and possibly provided her own bedclothes as only one set is listed. The cooking fire
equipment needs little explanation, except for the kettle, which was a large rbotidmed pot or
cauldion which could be hung over the fire.

The spinning equipment is all for wool rather than for flax and Marjorie enjoyed the luxury of a
spinning wheel. The brewing equipment was basic but adequate. The malt would be soaked in the
masking vat (sometimes ¢adl a mash tub) which stood on the brewing stool and had a hole in the
bottom with a plug to let out the liquor once the soaking was complete. The brewing tub was a
shallow vessel which stood under the stool to catch the liquid, which would then be loilee

kettle. Marjorie did not possess a large brewing cauldron, which suggests that she brewed only for
her household and not for sale.

Return to top of the document.
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The Seventeenth Century

Life and work
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Figure 10This illustation is a late nineteenth century drawing of an old house in the High St.

The date of the house is unknown but several others of similar layout survived in the town at that
time, with a central passage leading to the yard at the rear. This layout islmesm two
seventeenth century property deeds by which the tailor John Drysdale made over rights in his
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side of what is now the Abbot House. To Thomaseliisst son, he gave over the liferent of the
eastern half of his tenement, containing an upper and lower room and a front chamber, all on the
eastern side of the passage. On the western side of the passage he granted rights to his third son
John, currentl living in Poland, of the brewhouse and storeroom on the ground floor, with a stable
at the front. A house on the northern side of the Maygate, which survived long enough to be drawn
in the nineteenth century, was on a similar plan, with an arched cep&sgéage flanked by rooms on
either side.

Deeds seldom described the properties in any detail but the ones which give a description reveal
that a typical house seems to have consisted of four rooms on the ground floor with corresponding
rooms above reactkby a forestair and with a garret or attic above that. There might be a booth

odAf il 2y G GKS FTNBYG FyR & Ay 5NB&RFESQa OF

or separate. Some houses would have been of one storey only and theitd hee been a few, like
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Abbot House, with three stories, needing a turnpike stair to reach them. Internal stairs were a thing
of the future.

In fact the mixture would have been like that to be seen at Culross, which remains much as it was in
the seventeath century, with two big differences. The first is the neatness and good repair of the
Culross houses. Property deeds reveal that a number of seventeenth century houses in most towns
were in ruinsg and Dunfermline was no exception, even before much eftdwn was destroyed by

the fire of 1624. The other difference is that the smell of the place would have been overpowering.
Sanitation was by primitive cesspits, food and stable waste was piled in the streets in middens,
animals were slaughtered in the s#ts, which were never swilled down, and there were tanneries

by the Tower Burig on the windward side of the town.

Most people lived in a couple of rooms, the bettwf occupying a single floor of a house. Household
inventories for this period are vergarce but the furniture of Limekilns boatman David Murray was
probably typical of the average household. David owned two tables, one larger and one small, two
small cupboards, three chairs and four old chests. He had six sets of bedstead componentsh of whi
only one was in use, a small grate with cooking equipment, three pewter plates and a large bible.

The testaments of the deceased reveal a number of details of personal possessions and lifestyles.
Women in particular often listed the clothes they bequeed to their relatives. Isobel Turnbull, for
instance, in 1617 left her clothes to her nieces, Isobel and Janet. There were two black gowns, a
brown one and a grey one, a red petticoat, a pair of black cloaks, two velvet partlets (bodices) two
bongraces (had dresses), a velvet belt and three plaids, besides her timdgr. She also left

another niece her fixed chair in the kirk.

The contents of merchant booths were usually listed, lint (flax rgaeépared for spinning) and iron

featuring heavily as irhe case of Laurence Wilson who had traded in Poland and Prussia. He had

115 stone (1020Kk) of Danzig lint and 30 stone (240k) of Danzig iron, besides 7 ells of English cloth. He

was owed money by 38 individuals, two thirds of them being women owing fontiost of them for
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he sold lead, pots, hemp and timber, some of the latter being at Limekilns waiting to be brought to
Dunfermline. He was obviously doinglias he had £566 13/4d in ready money.

James Reid (who had been provost and dean of guild) made and sold malt, and besides lint and iron

sold brass, copper, pans, brass kettles, iron pots, soap, salt and dry hides, sheepskins and spindles of

linen yarn.He was also worth the magnificent sum of £933 6/8d. He was obviously a middle man in
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local but some were from further afield. A Culross ghmigker bought iron from him and other

customers came from Torryburn, Limekilns, Inverkeithing, Kirkcaldy and Dollar.

John Watson traded on a more modest scale. He hstdi®e of Danzig lint in his booth and £76 in
ready money.

Testaments and deeds also underline what a very rural town Dunfermline was. Deeds make frequent
mention of barns, mainly in the Netherton and to the north of the town, and testaments list the
bollsof bere, oats, pease and beans which those barns contained or which stood in ricks in the barn
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yards. Crops sown in the ground are also mentioned and the pathetic yields of the primitive farming
methods laid bare. It was estimated that the yield would Iodydhree or four times the volume of

the seed corn. This may have been erring on the conservative side but it is unlikely to have been
much higher.

Most burgesses owned some livestagKk 2 NE S&a> O2¢6a 0¢6A0K GKSAN Ol f gSa
pigs. Wiliam Pearson of East Port, who seems to have been a mealmaker, carefully listed the

whereabouts of his ten sheep: seven were pasturing in Touch with Robert Wellwood, two were in

Nether Beath with James Wellwood, and one ewe with her lamb inNether FodWilitam

Stanhouse.

The more fortunate owned land within the burgh boundary. The area now occupied by the Public
Park, Dunfermline Station and the houses between the station and the Lyne Burn was all arable land.
There was more arable to the north of thewao to the east and west of Pilmuir St. The town owned
extensive tracts of both arable and grazing land to the north east, which it let out on short leases to
the townsfolk. Further afield, townspeople were tenants on the estates of Baldridge, Urquhd#, Log
and the Beaths. The rents of the arable were computed in &isal many bolls of grain per acre .

They may have been paid in the cash equivalent, but given the number of folk who paid the interest
on their mortgages in grain in the early years of thaetoey, there may not have been very much

cash to spare.

Return to top of the document.
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Education
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Figure 11St Leonar@ School.

The history of education in Dunfermline probably begins with the setting up of a school by the
medieval monks of thel#bey at an unknown date. Its known history begins in 1468, with the

founding of the Grammar School. This establishment and the Abbey Song School were the only
schools in the burgh until after the Reformation of 1560, when the Kirk thought it importanathat
many people as possible should be able to read the Bible. Various teachers of reading and writing,
both male and female, served the children of the burgh during the following centuries, sometimes so
successfully that the Grammar School lost pupilsthedlown Council had to curtail the numbers of
other schools in the town.

By the nineteenth century the population had grown to such an extent that the establishment of
several primary schools posed no threat to the Grammar School. Most of the existiranpr
schools were founded at that time. Towards the end of the century the expansion of secondary
education led to the founding of the Lauder Techincal College and during the last century, other
secondary schools were built. The process continues witltiilding of new schools to serve the
Eastern Expansion at Duloch.

This section contains the histories of some of those schools.

The Grammar School
St Leonard's Primary School
The Carnegie Trust Craft School

16



Dunfermline Grammar School

The Early Years

In common with most other monastic establishments, from its early days Dunfermline Abbey

probably ran a school for aspirants to the religious life and the sons of gentlemen, but in 1468

Richard de Bothwell, Abbot of Dunfermline Abbey, founded a GrammaioSich the town, one of
the early masters of the school being the poet Robert Henryson, who died in about1508.
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Figure 12A medieval schoolmaster and his pupils
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been built on the site where it stood for several subsequent centuries, on the northeast corner of
Queen Ann St and Pilmuir St (the site of the present Bffite). By 1520 the school building had
been established on this site long enough to for a field which lay next to it to have become known as

W{ OK22f
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GKS Stk ad

concentrated orthe teaching of reading, writing and the learning of classical Latin and Greek
literature, providing an education which would lead to employment in the Church or to further
education in Law or the Classics.
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Attendance at the Grammar School was not cogdino the inhabitants of Dunfermline. On 3 March

MpTH | SYNE .2a¢Stft az2y 2F 2AttALY .236Sff 0dzZNHS3
Privy Seal the rents payable to the chaplainry of St James in the Regality of Dunfermline, to support

him at Durfermline Grammar School for seven years. The rents were worth 20 merks pa and were to

be uplifted by his parents. The Master of the said Grammar School was ordered to receive Henry

Boswell and at the end of the seven years, or if he did not continue ttysta notify the same so

that the chaplainry could be granted to someone else

Figure 13Medieval schoolboys

Seventeen years after Henry Boswell started attending the Grammar School the Boswell family was
involved in a major local scandal. James Spiah of the laird of Leuchat, had been put to the

school and boarded with Christian Boswell ‘an honest woman of Dunfermline'. His father died while
James was under fourteen years of age and in his will appointed three tutors or guardians for his
son, oneof whom was his cousin John Boswell of Balmuto. Once James reached the age of fourteen
he could choose new guardians, or curators, who would administer his property until he came of age
at twentyone. His curators could also arrange his marriage.

It was d this point, in September 1589, that his brotherlaw, Philip Mowbray, the son of James
Mowbray of Pitliver, abducted James Spittall from Christian Boswell's house 'and carried him to such
parts and places where the said Philip pleases, thinking teehim to choose such persons as

curators as the said Philip shall nominate and thereby to get the possession of the said James lands
and rooms and to marry him before he shall have experience and discretion to govern his own
affairs'. So stated John Boslva his October petition to the Privy Council for their help in retrieving

his cousin. His main fear seems to have been that Mowbray would marry James off to one of his own
relations before Boswell could find him.

18



Boswell had already taken the case toaart, which had charged Philip Mowbray, under pain of

being denouced rebel, to return James Spittall to Christian Boswell's house where he was to remain
until he could chose his curators legally, by having his nearest relatives on both his mother's and hi
father's side summonsed to the court of the Lords of Council and Session to hear him make his
choice. Mowbray had not obeyed the court and John Boswell now approached the Privy Council as
the highest authority in the land. The Council denounced Mowbsag @bel. Here the trail comes

to an end and it is not known what the outcome was, but the story highlights the status of the
Grammar School, which was suchthat wealthy men sent their sons to be educated at it.

Apart from Robert Henryson, the names ofdbrother schoolmasters are known from the sixteenth

century. Mr John Christison is mentioned as schoolmaster in 1568, 1570 and 1571. He was

succeeded by Mr John Henryson (possibly a descendant of Robert Henryson ) who soon came into

conflict with the miniser of the Abbey Kirk, David Ferguson. In 1567 it had been statute that all
{O0200A4aK a0K22fax dzyA@SNARAGASA |yR O2ftfS3Sa Ydzal
admitted to have charge and cure thereof in time coming, nor to instruct the youthtpiyvar

2LISyfer odzi &adzOK a4 aKlFff 6S GNASR o6& (GKS &dzLISNA
minister suspected that Henryson was not wholeheartedly in agreement with the Reformed faith,

and in 1573 he forbade him to teach in the scho@ntyson presented his case to the Privy Council.

'S O02yGSYRSR W¢KIG AT KS KIR y2i 06SSy ljdad fAFASR
complaint should have been made to the Abbot (ie the Commendator). But true it is that not only

has the said J; Henryson given confession of his faith and profession of the true Kirk, but also has
behaved himself honestly in conversation and life, never teaching or otherwise moving anything to

GKS &fFyRSNI 2F GKS S@IFy3asSt oD2alLlStouQo

Neither Ferguson nor the Arcldbiop of St Andrews, both of whom had been summonsed to

compear before the Privy Council, answered the summons, and it appears that Henryson continued
to teach. He was probably succeeded by Mr James Dalgleish, who was master by 1583 and in 1609
was made a brgess by right of his late father. He also became a member of the Dunfermline
Guildry. He ceased teaching in 1610

The School Buildings

¢tKS ¢26y ¢NBIFadz2NENRa | O02dzydia F2NJ GKS SIENXe& &SIk N
to the roof and windws of the schoolhouse. An entry in the accounts of 1612 for a payment of £2

13/4d for timber and workmanship to the stair head of the school loft shows that the building had at

least two stories, which suggests that it contained accommodation for theodtlaster. A few years

earlier a slater had been at work on the roof. The school had been built at a time when many of the
houses in the town were thatched and a slated roof was a sign of astagis building. By 1619

major work had been carried out atcast of £120, for which the schoolmaster had to pay the town

MMM LISNJ I yydzy AYyGSNBaildod LYy !dz3dzad 2F (GKIFG @S| NE
the schoolmaster. It is not clear why it was imposed in the first place, unless the originagd to

the school had been in some way the fault of the schoolmaster himself.

In 1624 this early school was burnt to the ground in the fire which destroyed much of Dunfermline,
and a new schoolhouse was built the following year, which continued inonskd next two

centuries. It was a small building, about 40 feet long by 25 feet broad (88m88cm). The upper

floor was used as a schoolroom and the schoolmaster and his family lived on the ground floor.
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Above the schoolroom door was a large stoneM#Bico SR A G K GKS G266y Qa I Nyxa
aAKA 5Sdza McHpPQ AS WCF@2dzNJ YS h Y& D2RQ® ¢KS { N
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Two of these inscribed stones are now built into a wall beltiredpresent Post Office. The

inscriptions over the eastern and western windows suggest that the Dunfermline schoolmasters fully
subscribed to the contemporary notion that learning had to be beaten into young minds.

Figure 14The 1625 Grammar School

In1817 a new, larger building was erected to the west of the 1625 school, which was demolished.

The inscribed stones from the old building were incorporated in the attic storey of the new building,

GKS adG2yS FTNRBY (GKS R22N KIS@RYAT a2R/R L BNI 1S2F SAQII 2unns G2
a0K22t ¢l a RSAONKOGSR (i Kdza Y-Hodse ks & vehy eat oblamNdiking2 NJ D NJ
at the head of the town with the plaground in front. It consists of two large schaobms on the

first (ground) floorand of an excellent dwellirigouse for the Rector on the second (first floor). It

KFEFa Fy 2NYFYSydltf OANDdzZ NI G26SNI NAaAy3a + tAGGTE S
Rector's apartment was reached by a turnpike stair at the rear of the buiddidghere was a

playgound to the front.

Figure 15The 1817 Grammar School building
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In 1886, after some four centuries on its old site, the Grammar School, having outgrown its

premises, moved to a new building in Buchanan St, to the north of Priory(hehimd the present

bowling green), The present Post Office was built to the south of the old school and the school

building is shown as a Mission Hall on the 1894 OS map. By 1901 the school had again grown, to the
point where it was sharing the newbpened Lauder Technical College building to the east of it.

There was also a junior department at Wymet Court in the New Row. When these arrangements in
0GKSANI GdzNy 6SOIFYS Ayl RSljdzk Sz I yS¢ |1 A3IK {OK22f
and the school moved there in 1939. The Wymet Court Junior school became Canmore Primary

School in 1924.

Figure 16 The Dunfermline High School

Paying the Teachers

The parents of each scholar paid a quarterly fee to the schoolmaster, but this was not sufticie
maintain him and other funding had to be found. By the end of the sixteenth century a total of £400
had been mortified (gifted) to the school:

£200 by Alan Coutts, Chamberlain of the Abbey

£100 by by Wiliam Shaw, HM Master of Works

100 merks (£66 18d) by John Davidson, servant of the Commendator of the Abbey
50 merks ((£66 13/4d) by William Philp, a maltman in the Netherton

The money was lent out on interest, the usual annual rate beibh§%, and the proceeds used to
pay the schoolmaster. Anothevray to provide money in perpetuity for charitable purposes was to
mortify one or more mortgages to the relevant institution. In 1601 the merchant Lawrence Wilson
used this method of leaving money to the school, his will stated that :

WKS 2F 02FENB YESSEITNSYSte gAariSR o0& D2RQ& Kl yR
countries of Poland, Germany and other parts beyond the sea, called earnestly to the Lord for relief

and then avowed if it pleased God to relieve him of his misery and give hilth laea ability of

body to travail for his living, that he should bestow some portion of his goods, according to his

ability, to the use of the poor. And the Lord having heard his prayer and not only granted his request
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but also having mercifully preservéim out of sundry perils and dangers since. He therefore,
acknowledging himself obliged of his foresaid promise and vow to the Lord his God, and willing to
perform the same in some measure, after his ability to the use of the poor within the town of
Dunfermline and to the maintaining and entertaining of the Grammar School there, where he was
born and upbrought. According to his promise made to God thereanent, partly afore dedicated and
mortified. Likewise he now, by virtue of this his latter will and lgdaeely gives, dispones,

dedicates and mortifies the sum of three hundred merks money of this realm of his own proper
gear, to the utility and use of the poor folks within the town of Dunfermline, and one hundred merks
money to the provision and entertaimg of the Grammar School of Dunfermline and schoolmasters
GKSNB2F LINBaSyid FyR G2 02YSdQ

Laurence Wilson provided the money by making over to the town mortgages which he held on

properties in the town. The 100 merks for the schoolmaster was a mortgagdemement on the

north side of the High St, which paid interest of 9 merks per annum. The various legacies no doubt
KSftLISR GKS YlIadSNna FAylryOSaszs |fiK2dzZa3K G4KA& RAR
for instance, the merchant Laurencealer, the then owner of the High St tenement, had to be

reminded by the Town Council to pay the 9 merks to the schoolmaster each year) but payment of

GKS ljdzZr NISNI & F¥SSa o6& LINByda gtra +y AYLERNILFyYG
so farin arrears that he petitioned the Town Council to make the parents pay up. An order by the

Council was ineffective and in the end one of the councillors was appointed to collect the fees,

either in the tolbooth or by calling at the houses of defaulters.

In 1610 the school finances received a major boost when Queen Ann of Denmark, who had been
given the Regality of Dunfermline by James VI as a wedding present, gave £2000 scots to the town to
be lent out on 10%pa interest and most of the proceeds used tdhpaynasters of the Grammar

School and the Song School, each of whom were to receive £100 per annum. As Lord of Dunfermline
the Queen already had the right of presentation of the masters of the schools and by her charter
gifting the money to the town she ade over this right to the Heritable Bailie of the Lordship (at that
time the Earl of Dunfermline) who was to be consulted about all appointments to the posts. This was
still the case in the midineteenth century, by which time the Heritable Bailie was Warquis of
Tweedale.

Until the foundation of banks at the end of the seventeenth century, the only way to raise interest
on sums of money was to loan them out to individuals. In November 1610 the burgh treasurer (a
baker called Patrick Turnbull) beg&y RAy 3 2dzi GKS vdz2SSyQa 3IAFaY

George Lindsay of Keavil 500 merks

James Reid merchant 700 merks (and another 200 merks in January 1611)
Edward Thomson merchant 300 merks

John Strang burgess 300 merks

Patrick Murray of Perdieus 300 merks

Patrick Young maltnma500 merks

(a merk was 13/4d ie 2/3 of £1)

These loans were renewed each year. In some cases the money was paid back and lent to another
borrower and in some cases the loan was continued for a further year. The Kirk Session also
contributed £8 6/8d (£8 8p) per quarter to the pay of the schoolmaster. This arrangement
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continued until 1834, when a new system of payment was instituted. The schoolmaster was assisted
by a Doctor (later called the Usher) whose quarterly payment was made by the Kirk Session. The
doctor also had a third of the fees paid by parents.

The Seventeenth and Eighteenth Centuries

The names of four masters of the Grammar School are known for the years 1610 to 1640. William

Smith was appointed in 1610, James Sibbald is mentioned in 16{l&gam in 1629. James Reddie is
mentioned in 1632 and 1635 and by 1640 he had been succeeded by John Hodges. Mr Hodges and

his family were victims of the plague which broke out in the town in 1645. On December 23 the Kirk
{Saarz2y LI AR pMaQFf2m) G6KES PRSKRA|DEAL{ RNBY WIyR 2NF
and furnishing to the said Mr John and his wife in all necessaries, they being now in the moor and

she newly delivered of a child there, they being put there because they were undeiidnfetthe

LX F 3dz2SQd !G4 GKS 0S3AAYYAYy3a 2F WIHydzZ NBE GKS asSaaizy
supplied to the family in the muir, which had been used as a quarantine station for plague victims.

In May 1646 Mr Oswald Bigholme was admittsdhaaster of the Grammar School. Four years later

the Session granted him an extra payment because he had a large family, but this seems to have
been insufficient for his needs because a successor was appointed who only lasted until 1653. He
was succeededypThomas Walker, who was entered to the Guildry in 1655. Walker was master until
1661, although in 1656 he petitioned the Session for help because his school roll had declined. A
major factor in the decline was the poverty of the local gentry, causeddyrippling taxations

imposed on Scotland by the English Parliament, Scotland being under English occupation from 1650
until the restoration of the Monarchy in 1660. Gentlemen (and others) could no longer afford to

send their sons to school. The other faictvas the growth in the numbers of schools in the villages
(many of them supported by the Session itself). Over the next few years the Session managed to find
extra money for the schoolmaster by holding collections and mortifying other funds so that the
interest could be paid to him.

Figure 17Inscribed stones from the 1628gh schoolbuilding
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In 1653 Robert Inglis was appointed school doctor, with a testimonial from Abercorn, but in 1659

scandal erupted when he wdound drunk and in bed with Elspeth Matheson. Several witnesses also

gave evidence that on 2 February Inglis had been drunk and swearing in company with some English
soldiers in a tavern. The Session heard a number of witnesses on several occasbnd)ath

confirmed the stories, and they had no option but to depose him. They gave him notice and ordered

that he be publicly rebuked in the Kirk on the following Sunday, but the schoolmaster, Thomas

Walker, got the public rebuke delayed until nearerthe¥S 2 F Ly 3f A& RSLI NI dzNB W
were publicly rebuked for the present it would be a mean to make him condemned and vilified in the
a0K22ft Q> |fGK2dAK Ay | ayvYlff 26y fA1S 5dzy FSN¥f A
from getting ou. Inglis was rebuked on Sunday 5 June and presumably left shortly after. The

following April Mr Patrick Milne was appointed in his place.

There was a high turnover of both masters and doctors in the seventeenth century. The relative
paucity of the salaés had a lot to do with this situation, but the upheavals of the wars of -5&B8
and the subsequent English occupation no doubt played their part.

Applicants for the post of schoolmaster and doctor were subjected to a searching viva examination,

one of whch is recorded in the year 1705, when a Mr Kerr applied for the post of schoolmaster. He

was examined in the presence of the Town Council by a panel consisting of Mr James Bayne,
schoolmaster of Musselburgh, Mr John McDougal brother of the laird of LagdrCharles Stewart.

The examiners reported that the candidate had given no clear proof of his ability to convey a clear

notion of the fundamentals of grammar to boys. They had also examined him in the most common

LI aal 3Sa 2F ¢ SNByrQSAE2 Wadid SiyArdes |/ yARD SINe Gh FnSNa 2 F | 2
considerably defective in the reading, construction and exposition &c and, in short, his Latin was not
LISNFSOGQd LyAGAlffe KS gl a NB2SOGSR odzi 2y I LIS
Whitsunday (May/June). It seems that he failed that probationary period as well, because later that

year a Mr James Graham, schoolmaster, was admitted to the Guildry. In 1748 an applicant for the

post of doctor was more fortunate. He passed an examindtidinglish, Latin and writing,

conducted by a minister, a preacher, a beadle and a tobacconist..

After James Graham only six more schoolmasters have been identified in the eighteenth century, so
it may be that terms of office had become longer. One witbrabt stay long, however, was Mr Glen
who succeded Mr Brand in 1730. The appointment was the cause of a tussle between the Kirk
Session and the Marquis of Tweedale, both of whom had a say in the appointment of the
schoolmaster. The Marquis wanted to appioihe current Doctor, Mr John Hart, but the Session was
oppose to this appointment 'because of the offence given byhis conduct and behaviour in 1725,
when he used means to obtrude himself upon the affair of reader and precentor'. Mr Glen was the
Session'shoice and in the end he got the job.

Another which was shotlived was the tenure of Andrew Donaldson at sometime in the-mid

OSylidzNEd 52yt Razy ¢l a +ty SEGNBYSte SOOSYydiNmnO YI
ankles, without a hat, which he@mfully discarded, with flowing locks and a huge beard, and in his
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irksome task and forsook his post, remarking as did so that he was sure Job never was a
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a hat before them, into which passeny threw money. Ot least one occasion Donaldson ended

up in the tolbooth jail for assaulting such a preacher. When he gave up his teaching post he moved

to Edinburgh where he supported himself by manual labour. Death, however, returned him to
Dunfermline and he was buriegdy G KS ! 66S& {ANJ&FNRZI KAa 3INI @Sai?z
fASd ! YRNBg 52y fRaAa2ys> | 3I22R a0K2fFNJFYR | &AAYyC

The Nineteenth Century

In contrast to the rapid turnover of schoolmasters in earlier tintes,nineteenth century was

dominated by two men. Archibald Haxton was master from 1810 until his death in 1850 and William
¢CK2Yla . NRgsy FTNRY mypm (2 mMycchdd LG 61 a Ay aNI | |E
1817, and he also oversaw, perh&®®Sy AYAGAlFI GSRTZ GKS F2dzyRIFIGA2Y 27F
school building in 1833. The Library was open from 6.00pm to 8.0pm on Wednesdays and 9.00am to
11.00am on Saturdays. Subscribers could pay 4s (20p) a year, 2/6d (12%2p) a quarter or 8d per month

for the right to take out two books at a time. Nebscribers paid ¥2 d a book for any book under

octavo size, which they could keep until the next opening time. If they kept the book for longer they

were charged ¥ d per day. For larger books the chargelwawith 1d a day fine for not returning it

2y GAYS® ¢KS IROSNIAASYSY(d F2NJ GKS [ AONFNEB g NJS
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The next master, William Thomson Brawn OF YS FTNRY . 2QySaas gKSNB KS K
was initially appointed as assistant to Archibald Haxton. While he was assistant master the school
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the TownCouncil. In 1851, the year of his appointment, the Town Council, with the approval of the

Marquis of Tweedale in whose gift the post of schoolmaster still lay, decided to limit the

appointment of the Rector of the High School to ten year periods. HowkblreBrown must have

proved very satisfactory as he was obviously granted a further term when his first decade was

finished. His sister also taught for a while in the Grammar School for a while and afterwards carried

on a school in Canmore Stformanyygarsa NJ . N2 gy NBUGdzZNY SR (G2 .2QySaa
by his pupils with a Testimonial of their appreciation of his work, as a leaving gift.
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talent. As a teacher he was highly esteemed and though his size suggested the dnust A G £ S 2 F &
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The fees varied according to the subjects studied. English, Latin, Greek, French and Mathematics
were all available as separagebjects at 5s (25p) a quarter. Combinations paid for jointly were
English, Geography, Writing and Arithmetic at 12/6d (62%2p) a quarter, and English, Writing and
Arithmetic at 10/6d (52¥%2p). English and Writing was also available. The separate 5s saljlects
be added to one of the basic curricula as and when required.
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The endof-year examination has been
mentioned in the item about Mr Haxton and the
institution still continued in 1904when it was
advertised in the local press:

The examination of the pupils attending the
Grammar School will take place on Wednesday
the tenth July next. The parents of the pupils
and the friends of education are respectfully
invited to attend.Arrangemein¢ English

reading, beginning with the junior class, from 10
to 12: English grammar, composition &c 12 to 1:
Latin, Greek and French 1 to 2: geography,
arithmetic and music 2 to 4.The next session will
commence on Monday the twelfth of August,
when classe for beginners in all the défent
branches will be formed.

The relative importance of the different
subjects, indicated by their position in the day
and the time allotted to them, is informative.
English and Classics were obviously seen as
having prigity, with other subjects a rather poor
second and no mention at all of History or any
of the Sciences.

Figure 18A reciept for Grammar School fees signed

by William Brown
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Figure 19The 1886 High School building
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The new school building which was opened in 1886 was paid for by voluntary contributions raised by
Mrwilliay Ly 3fAa W OAGAT SYy gK2 aG22R o6& GKS 1 A3K {O
Ol dzaS 2F SRdzOI GA2y 6AGK SYyGANB RS@2GA2y a2z f2y13
school reopened a debate which had first erupted among the menstof the School Board in 1877

and which concerned issues of selection and elitism which still arouse fierce passions today. A
Y2iA2Yy 6+ a& | R2LGSR GKIFIAGY W¢KS DNIYYIFN { OK22f &K?
no child be allowed to attenchie school who was under the age of ten years, or who was unable to

pass an examination in the existing fourth standard of the Scotch Education Code and that the whole

of the annual grant of £100 payable by the town Council be applied towards the maingohtie

a0K22f Qo

g I YSSGAy3a KSER Ay R@GIyOS 2F StSOGA2ya G2 GKS
2y GKS . 2FNR 6SNB &dzZJIRNISR Ay (GKSANI 202S0iGAz2y
that the children of the welto-do were being educated at the expense of rapaying workers. Six

20KSNJ YSYOSNES AyOfdzRAY3a ! yRNBG /I NYyS3IASQa dzy Of
GKS 1 A3K {OK22f oy20S G4KS OKIy3aS 2F ylIYS0 KIFIR |
YR S LJthe Mdicgtians of a reactionary poliggthe promoters of that policy not being friends

SAGKSNI 2F (GKS Ol dzaS 2F SRdzOlF GA2Yy 2NdlaSsO2y2YeQd Co
SRdzOF A2y T TF2NRSR (KS NBIFIRASalG LI aalLlRNI G2 a&adzoc
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George Laudewras defeated at that election but was-stected in 1882, when at a public meeting

he again vigorously defended the use of Town funds to support the school, causgagriot in the

hall. His suggestion that the fees be reduced to 7/6d a quarter wasoglsosed. Lauder was not a

YI'y 2 6S RSFSIGISR K26SOSNE YR AYy mMyypX F FGSNI
F2NJ I ySg aOKz22f o0daAf RAYy3IZ KS NBUGdZNYySR G2 GKS TN
from the rates be doubled anithe fees reduced to the same level as those of the Elementary

Schools. These suggestions were not taken up either and Lauder resigned from the Board. In his

letter of resignation he complained that the curriculum was especially intended for boys whadwishe

to go to University, when in his view it should be extended to all the modern requirements of an

industrial education. He still maintained, however, that the school should be available only for

advanced pupils, first from inhabitants of Dunfermline ahdrt for those outwith the town.

Lauder may have been frustrated in his attempts to get the High School curriculum broadened, but

this spurred him on to take matters into his own hands and approach his wealthy nephew Andrew

Carnegie for funds to build alsmol which would offer a technical education. Carnegie donated a

total of £10,000 and the new school was built just to the east of the new High School and opened by

/' FNYyS3IAS Ay mMydppd !'d KA& NBIldzSad AdG olABnosy YSR W¢
immediately the High School began using the facilities in its neighbouring building, so George Lauder
managed to achieve his aim before his death in 1900 at the age of eighén
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Figure 20The Lauder Techincal School
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on the west side of Hospital Hill. On the opposite side of the road is the site of the medieval hospital

or hogice dedicated to St Leonard, patron saint of midwives, pregnant women and prisoners (now

built over by a supermarket).Saint Leonard was associated with several medieval hospitals

throughout Scotland, notably one on the south side of Edinburgh. A chagsgital building and

well stood on the Dunfermline site and after the dissolution of the Abbey in1560 the buildings were
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used for secular purposes, including a maltings. The chapel was destroyed by Cromwellian troops
after the Battle of Pitreavie in 1651bthe adjoining graveyard was used for burials until 1780. The
remaining walls of the hospital fell down some years after the abandonment of the graveyard.

¢tKS KA&aG2NE 2F {04 [S2yIFINRQa aoOKz22f o0SIAYRAAY My
linen factory, provided a schoolroom in the factory for the children of his workers. This was probably

one of the earliest créche facilities to allow mothers to work in a mill. In 1858 the school had 200

pupils on its roll, taught by Mr James Dickie &hd Henderson. Mr Beveridge also provided a

library and reading room for the workers and their families. Nine years later he commissioned Mr

Hay, a local architect, to design apurpaselzA £ G & 0K22f AGK | 3ISYSNIf Of|
classroom(28ftx18ft) and a juvenile classroom (18ftx17ft).

The First Building

Figure 22{ & [ S2y I NRQa& FTANRG o0dzAt Ay 3

The school was built on the east side of Hospital Hill, where the supermarket now stands, There was

an entrance porch which was surmounted byamtagonal bell turret, with a spire and gilt weather

vane. A classroom measuring 41ft x 17% ft was deemed in 1856 to be sufficient to hold 90 children,

but frequently twice that number would be crammed in. The school staff comprised the headmaster

(Mr Dicke), who had taught at the works school for nine years, two assistants and five pupil teachers
(children from the top class who helped to teach the younger ones). The Education act of 1872

transferred control of all schools to locakyected schoolboards o dzi { G [ S2y I NRQa { Of
taken over until 1879, when the school board paid £1200 for the building and contents. The addition

of a further classroom immediately after the takeover and an infant department in 1890 to Mr

. SOSNA RIS Qa bmught thd syated capnchyki® 353 sEniors and 143 infants. Whilst the
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seniors never exceeded that number, the junior department was constantly above its authorised
capacity.

The cost of running the school in 1894 was £862 15/11d, the largest part ekgenditure being

£736 for salaries. Income was from grants awarded by the Scotch (sic) Education Department, but a
RSFTAOAG 2F amtp MKkpR gla LIAR FTNRY (KS NridSao !
1898, whilst praising the quality ofaehing, pointed out that the constant overcrowding of

classrooms and the inadequate and objectionable state of the playground could not be ignored. It

was also stated that the grant paid to the school would only be paid on the authorised capacity of

143 irfants and not on the actual roll of around 183.

Figure 23The Choir in the 1930s

This loss of revenue helped to concentrate the minds of the members of the Dunfermline School
Board and they took the decision to build a separate school, to be useclsettior pupils. In May

1899 the architects H&D Barclay of Glasgow were appointed and an approach was made to the Earl
of Elgin to feu 1% acres of ground on the west side of Hospital Hill (the site of the present school), at
a rent of around £16 per acreepannum. The architects were instructed to prepare plans for a
building to accommodate 700 pupils, and their plans for a sisgleey building were approved

some six months later, but only for a portion of the proposed building which would be suitable fo

400 pupils
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Figure 24The Scottish Country Dance Team in the 1930s

The Present Building

Before tenders were accepted for the erection of the new school, further undisclosed modifications

were proposed, in order to reduce costs. Together with thelkmg work and the employment of an

inspector of work (Mr Swinton) at a rate of £1 10s per week, the total bill for the school came to

£7,600. It is not stated whether this included furnishing the building. There are two entries in the

board minutes regating furniture for the building. Bennet Furnishing were paid £153 2/6d for
adzFFAOASYG RS&a1a FYyR aSHdiAy3 F2NJ AAE NeB2Yao !
sewing press at £5 5s was accepted only three days before the official odniregschool. This is

called forward planning!

'da’y

In order to finance this expense the Dunfermline School Board took out a loan of £7,600 with the

Airdrie Savings Bank, to be paid in three instalments. The loan was repayable over 40 years by fixed
annual sims of £190. with a break in favour of both parties at the end of 20 years. The official
2LISYyAy3 2F {i [S2yFNRQa t NAYINE {OKz22f (2271 LIJIC
5dzy FSNX¥YftAyS {OK22f . 2FNRZ (GKS wS@dtteZompanfiiaSNI 2 F L
dedicatory prayer and the Earl of Elgin performed the formal opening ceremony.
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HAS HELPED TO PROVIDE COUMFORY AND CONTENTMENT TO THE SOLDIERS
SAILORS AND AIRMEN OF THE BRITISH COMMONWEALTH, WHO HAVE RALLIED
TO THY CAUSE OF SAFEGUARDING FREEDOM. JUSTICE AND SECURITY

Figure 25Certificate won by a pupil for knitting socks for servicemen

Both primary and infant schools now had sufficient capacity for the catchmeatvainech they

served, 420 primary and 496 infant. In fact they ran udAdkd. In 1902 there were 279 and 195

infant pupils. The infant school was demolished in 1973 to make way for the supermarket which was
built on the site. In that year the school relbs 223 and in 1989 172, of which 81 pupils lived

outwith the catchment area, and 27 nursery pupils. The basic salary of a male assistant in 1902 was
£100 and that of a female assistant was £60, both with a superannuation premium. Annual
increments were gually £10 for the headmaster and £5 for the assistants. The list of additional skills
of the staff included drawing, S&A physio, physiography, woodwork and physical drill. The
headmistress had needlework and dresgting skills.

Figure 26 The Footballeam c1940
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